

PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT[641]

Adopted and Filed

Pursuant to the authority of Iowa Code section 135.11(26), the Department of Public Health (IDPH) hereby amends Chapter 24, “Private Well Testing, Reconstruction, and Plugging—Grants to Counties,” Iowa Administrative Code.

The amendments update the Grants to Counties program, including references to the Iowa Code and reimbursement rates for Grants to Counties activities.

Notice of Intended Action was published in the Iowa Administrative Bulletin on January 21, 2015, as **ARC 1840C**. A public hearing was held on February 10, 2015. One comment was received from a county health department regarding the reimbursement rate for private water well plugging activities. No changes were made to the Noticed amendment in response to this comment. IDPH will conduct training statewide with current Grants to Counties programs to ensure that county partners understand the reimbursement structure impacted by this rule change.

The only change from the Notice is the addition of the phrase “will be paid” in subrules 24.5(1) to 24.5(3) to make the construction parallel to that of subrules 24.5(4) to 24.5(7).

These amendments were adopted by the State Board of Health on March 11, 2015.

After analysis and review of this rule making, no impact on jobs has been found.

These amendments are intended to implement Iowa Code sections 455E.11 and 135.11(26).

These amendments will become effective on July 1, 2015.

The following amendments are adopted.

ITEM 1. Amend rule 641—24.1(135) as follows:

641—24.1(135) Applicability. These rules apply to administration of the grants to counties program by the department in accordance with Iowa Code sections 135.11(26) and 455E.11(2) “b”(3)(b), ~~subsection 2, paragraph “b,” subparagraph (3), subdivision (b)~~, for the purpose of testing private water wells, reconstructing private water wells, and the proper plugging of abandoned private water wells (including cisterns that present a contamination risk to groundwater); within the jurisdiction of each county board of health.

ITEM 2. Adopt the following **new** definition of “Public water supply” in rule **641—24.2(135)**:

“*Public water supply*” means a system for the provision to the public of piped water for human consumption, if such system has at least 15 service connections or regularly serves an average of at least 25 individuals daily at least 60 days during the year.

ITEM 3. Amend subrules 24.5(1) to 24.5(7) as follows:

24.5(1) Up to ~~\$500~~ \$1,000 will be paid for private water well-related training expenses, including registration, mileage, and per diem for employees attending department-approved trainings. Training approval is granted to water well-related training sponsored by the department, the Iowa Environmental Health Association, the Iowa Public Health Association, the Iowa Water Well Association, the Iowa department of natural resources, and or the Iowa Ground Water Association. The annual conference sponsored by the Iowa Onsite Waste Water Association is also approved. Other trainings must receive approval of the department ~~prior to submitting~~ before a voucher for expenses is submitted.

24.5(2) Up to ~~\$250~~ \$500 will be paid for ~~equipment expenses~~ supplies related to the grants to counties program. Eligible ~~equipment includes~~ supplies include, but is are not limited to, Global Positioning System (GPS) units, private water well data software, inspection ~~equipment~~ supplies, cameras, and sampling equipment.

24.5(3) Up to ~~\$250~~ \$1,000 will be paid for advertising and promotional expenses to educate county residents about the availability of funds for private water well testing, abandoned well plugging, and private water well reconstruction.

24.5(4) ~~\$75~~ \$75 Actual costs will be paid for each private water well test conducted under the program, including ~~\$45~~ \$60 for administrative expenses. At a minimum, well sampling shall include analyses for total nitrate (including nitrite) and total coliform bacteria. Optional analyses may also include arsenic.

24.5(5) ~~\$475~~ Up to \$575 will be paid for each abandoned private water well plugging conducted in accordance with ~~567 IAC —Chapter 39~~, including \$75 for administrative expenses. Private water well plugging must be conducted by a certified individual as defined in ~~567 IAC —Chapter 82~~ or by the well owner under direct supervision by the county.

24.5(6) Up to \$375 will be paid for each cistern plugging but only for those cisterns deemed by the administrative authority to impact groundwater, including \$75 for administrative expenses. Cistern plugging must be conducted by a certified individual as defined in ~~567 IAC —Chapter 82~~ or by the well owner under direct supervision by the county.

24.5(7) ~~Up to \$600~~ \$1,000 in reconstruction costs plus 33 percent of actual reconstruction costs for administrative purposes will be paid for each private water well reconstruction. Grant funds may be used to conduct reconstruction intended to preclude contamination due to surface water intrusion by coliform or other infectious bacteria. Examples include repairs of casing, well caps, or pitless adapters, and elimination of well pits.

ITEM 4. Renumber subrules **24.6(5)** to **24.6(8)** as **24.6(6)** to **24.6(9)**.

ITEM 5. Adopt the following **new** subrules 24.6(5) and 24.6(10):

24.6(5) Plugging and reconstruction of wells that are not private water supply wells.

24.6(10) Reimbursement of any individual or entity other than the well owner.

ITEM 6. Amend subrule 24.7(3) as follows:

24.7(3) Qualified staff. Staff ~~performing services~~ conducting water well sampling, providing oversight of well or cistern plugging, providing oversight of well reconstructions, or providing technical assistance under this agreement shall complete a minimum of 12 hours of continuing education every year as approved by the Iowa Environmental Health Association Environmental Health Registry Program.

ITEM 7. Amend subrule 24.7(8) as follows:

24.7(8) ~~Workplan Procedures manual.~~ A detailed workplan procedures manual including, but not limited to, the following:

a. The ~~names and~~ qualifications of personnel responsible for carrying out the program.

b. No change.

c. A description of ~~any proposed~~ the environmental health and public information programs related to the private well testing, abandoned well plugging, or private well reconstruction programs.

d. Methods to be used by the applicant for selecting private water wells for testing, abandoned private water wells for plugging, or private water wells for reconstruction and the method to address the number of tests which will be reimbursed for individual property owners.

e. to h. No change.

ITEM 8. Amend subrule 24.9(2) as follows:

24.9(2) Submission. The department will notify each county board of health of the grant application due date at least 60 days prior to the ~~grant application~~ due date. Completed applications must be received by the Iowa Department of Public Health, Division of Acute Disease Prevention, Emergency Response and Environmental Health, 321 E. 12th Street, Des Moines, Iowa 50319, by the close of business on the application due date. Applications not received by the application due date will be considered ineligible to receive funding during the appropriate fiscal year.

ITEM 9. Amend subrule 24.14(3) as follows:

24.14(3) The continuation or renewal of a grant shall be contingent upon the county's acceptable performance in carrying out its responsibilities described in the ~~workplan procedures manual~~ and in meeting the grant program goals and objectives. All grants will be issued for ~~not more than a period of~~ one year concurrent with a state fiscal year. Applicants must reapply to continue or renew any grant within the specified grant application acceptance period. The department may deny the awarding of a

grant extension or may withdraw a grant if it is determined that the county has not carried out the grant responsibilities.

ITEM 10. Amend **641—Chapter 24**, implementation sentence, as follows:
These rules are intended to implement Iowa Code sections 455E.11 and 135.11(~~29~~)(26).

[Filed 3/11/15, effective 7/1/15]

[Published 4/1/15]

EDITOR'S NOTE: For replacement pages for IAC, see IAC Supplement 4/1/15.